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EERTHARRERS - ABEROREZZEZRER

RZZB-RF=A=1+—H  EFRTBREERARBZEA - BEARN RMEF(ERRERAMF71EESRBEERG([F
HREEIED DEXVER) T - BERIBES RBERGIEXVIE RN MEMNEARRNEERZER (BREMAXEEETHIT
BAEHBIEE S LB RIZSEORE IR R AEANRENRTER) « HEHIRIEES LB HIIFE21FAFERN TR
MegERkz=R  IRBEEHETAZERETESISNRETA(MRETA N EMNE AR A REBHEIZMER AT (5
R EEERZERMT

VNN
HARAT
A E BRTRA
RE Aot
EEFLE P EE s 72,650,000 - 14.54
(M3E)
BEmEAA 3,652,000 - 0.73
BR/ NS BEmEAA 26,100,800 - 522
I E BEmEAA 1,450,000 - 0.29

BiRE © LSRR FaTime Easy Investment Holdings Limited ([ Time Easy ] )45 + MTime Fasy2 S0 2 31T AMEF AL ARE ©

BRENFREEN R-Z-—RAF=A=1—HB EFRTREIMEETTHERRRZRG - BERMHNEFOERNZE
B MARIEESF R AE GO FE3520650 8 - FUARBRAE T RIZRBAA R B KRB f o

ESBEROIESZ 2HER
RERNEARRE  FAEFRRESEZRBIAKRF FL - SEERIITEABBALR R RN IMES M ED RN - AQ
A E MM ERRME ML - BUEERAMEMEMEA B BESZEEN -
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EEEHE(H)

EFERRRBROREBRG 2EBZRER
RZZ-—RAF=ZA=1t—H BARREERITHERIN » THATRARRZBN RE@ERNT - BEEREESMAEE
IEEXVEREE2 M3 D BFRE MA A BIHRE A RN AR RERE S R ERPIEBFREFEZELMuS 2 BaRZERIT

R F]

FEEEREAE BRTRA

BR HAL

Time Easy EmEA A 72,650,000 - 14.54
(PIEED)

EXTERGBRAA Rk E 192,000,000 - 3842
(rgmh (M5E2)

Wealthplus Holdings Limited S AE RS 192,000,000 - 3842
(TWealthplus ) (Mf7E2)

WITIZE(EE)BRAR IEEEER 192,000,000 - 3842
) (FMisE2)

Pou Hing Industrial Co. Ltd.  Z#AE#EZ 192,000,000 - 3842
([PouHingl) (fF5E2)

Great Pacific Investments EmlEa A 192,000,000 - 3842
Limited ([ Great Pacific]) CE))

Delta Lloyd Asset EmEA A 39,986,000 - 8.00

Management NV

MRE -
1. Time Easy 2 #RE BTTAAMIER FHEARA ©

2. #192,000,0008% A Great Pacificf§8 + Pou Hing#§ 8 Great Pacific® #p# a5 o #ITHAPou HingZ EPE 1 TARA + Wealthplus ZWin Fortune Investment
Ltd. ([Win Fortune]) & B 5B 17046.89% % 3.09% 25 + B A BI#E A Wealthplus & Win Fortune2 #0#E25 » B * Pou Hing ~ #A7T + Wealthplus » Win
Fortune & B A 5 i 15 /2 ¥ 7 FR Great Pacific AT /5 192,000,0000% H) i 25

BEXEEESN RZT-RF=A=1—"R BREX[EERTREEREKD  HEROEEF 2 EERER | —EBMEEAR
RIEENMTHRAZERI  BEEAALTRARRZBRMHBBRNT - BLHB EAARER S RS GG 5336508
ZHEZHER o

",
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EESRE(E)
EANBREFRE

BREARR A AREMZEMRBESMAE  RAREAY - ARARE2HEHITRANRD25%HARALRAE °

EENBRBER2ER

EENBRFEBPEEEARBERAES LA ETARR])Es105EE 2RI T
BEENSR NGRS RRERME REmEE ZEAH
BRGFRE(SEE]D)  BWo(MizE) e HALTIR —E-—%+-A
BRI EZ+([FR%E )  DinTsun Holding Co, Ltd. R AK Bl % —E——FMmA

([Din Tsun ) (MF7E2)

R #x —E—=F|mA
PRz Faith Year Investments Limited PR AR L BF —=—ZFN\A
B ([Faith Year]) (Fff3E2) EF —E—=FMA
BRZz Pro Kingtex Industrial Co, (HK) Ltd. A7k &liE 2% —E=—ZFN\A
B ([ProKingtex]) (BfizE2) 2% —E—=FmA

fizE1 : WMITABRAMETRARRARREERR -MTEENTIEXBTARERHEERER  TERDHEDRER - R THENFRAR  H

FisE2 -

BE-ZT S+ A=+ HEFEERPERBHAWRABBORET - ARAEE I BELLBHRUKREERE H XY BUtHTE
B EAEBMNEBREEEHRT -

HAMTEERASERTREEYNERERLE  EERR/ARAF B BENTTEBMATHEITER - KEEHDRLELEBRTEERA
SENTELERRE  EFAE  AHEBTAREHARBEBRKUENRTF -

DinTsunR=_ZTERF—AMAERBEXHSEMRYT - AW TEBEURMEEAARRSFHE — ¥ o Din Tsun RMITEE S BliFAFaith
YearE B1TARZAN70%5230% * MFaith YearBl 2 & #E G Pro Kingtex ° Din Tsun R E KB R B AW ITEBMWIZTE T - Din Tsun R EL BB AR (BIE
Pro Kingtex) B0 = & ¥ AEE R - KB RFIMREMRIE o RIEDIN TsuniREMER - Din Tun REMBRARBE_T—NF+-_A=+—H1t
FEEBMABB_EB-_TEIRIT - ML RIBALLES BIERSAINADINTsun  Faith Year ZPro Kingtex®2 B - HTMTTEBAOREEERNE -

BRZ =73 K Din Tsun & EFi B2 B (82 4EPro Kingtex) Z &8 + {5 A2 8Din Tsun R EM B A B 2 RIKELS - A# e F @R - BEAEERE
REREHEBE - MELFNZER  PEEBTESLEAKBE  UWERESSSHAB I AETNERE - RIBILEERBHMDIn TsunfiBE A
RI(B3EPro Kingtex) AR AN BIEAE « REREZT W TS REGE - ARESAEANAR BT BHDing TsunRHMB AR (R1E
Pro Kingtex) A i3 1 THE7 o

B EXHEERAEEERSI  EERRESAIBMBEAMENMEM BRI BN REX S ERIMERT 2 X G
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EER
BEERR - BETREE
RAARRIBRE AR R 2

B BLEm

ZOKERTENFHAERER -

RRESE

E
EEH

aBE
—E—RFA=-+"H

ARBRFERRE 2 S5 R —EE T ETRAMER 4R bR B A< RI(FRI ) 2 SFRMEC -

—HEMRIREETR 25 - F2HFRAZERERRS

ARRHREERFAFAGRER BEBERARRZEE ZRESR
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TEERHRE

REBBNERRKFEZEEER  BAREAE  FAEURBYIMZRA - REE-—F-RAF=A=T—"RALFE - KiAd
FERREMMLZIREESN - NAR—EETEBMARXSMER AR (B DE S EHARA( EHRAI DSR40 B ER

SR EEATA DATEMTANE - BRREZ ABRABR A EE AREME -
1. EE
a. HERREE
RAEE  ARREZEE([F52 ) 2HEKEEARAESE([EE H)EFESeSZ 2083 0N T ¢
HE, BT —E-—NE
SERE BRBERE
HITES
BB SE(EERITEAEE) 5/5 11
BRI (BIEE) 4/4 1/1
PG E 4/4 /1
PRITERZ T 4/4 11
BYFHTES
PRE R ICE 4/5 0/1
ERESLE 4/5 11
Bl LR S 4/5 0/1

AFEREENERERERE | —SREMAESTNRERE - BARREE  EFGXEZHLENTE - %75
REREMERLEBAEAE -

BYFIITES

BREMRAENERZRE RO —BARABUIFATER((BUIIFNTES ) EABEEEXERAE
AR ERERERANS - RREMRUFEIBRZRE  AEECRESBUIFATERTELNFEMRE
R AEKERR 2REFRTESORETRAMER ZBIAL °

BRBEUIFMTERZERR=F » EXAZTERHEINEEBRAEGRRIES -
EEERTRZ TR EACTERE (P ERE) BUFNTEERAMIFRTEEREERRAE - AR

AEFRITEERESREERBRBEREREMEFMARELEARARFAR _Z2—NFENAZ+—BRTHR
RBFRE -
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ERW|E (E)

BE)

c ExgcEIREE
BESFRBIETREEAEEHEYR HAAESERENAEE  RERNEE K EEeaBETEe
FRMDEBRTH - BREELERZELE - S EREUN A ERERAEEREERH 2 RER -
BESRHEYEEEERALERAENEE TR EHE Y BPITERE o

d. FERITHEAR
DEEATAZ TR EA2LVEIBERRITRAENACETRES BT EHE—ATEE - E5FALER
—EToGAREAEEEIR WEH T —HAA-TARSIAAATNTHER - 5 RS
N EEERARTEEY AT RESeRAEETEE Y MNENRIERTE  EAESeEALNRLER
ERRLBORTBRRHAAEEE - AEEEBE FNFEDBATRESEE o

e. - -EBRESR
EERLBAESIEE - BEALRZAGSREN  EEENERIE-GE - HEET BESEZS
A AMESNBEBERER  EABRE TEARTREAS  NBRARAEESRE - AEBRETEA
AEREBFAS -  AEBAEREF SETSIEITAENHRGRTHREYEES NBEBZTHRIN
BEEERETRE - TREENESSRHABERABIMELZE - BESBBBAR Y SBEREBEIESE -

f. BEEETRERS
ANFBIRM ETRBMR102 LT AT EERITESRZ HMIZESTR([1ZEFR )  EAERBEEETES
RHTBRTER  MAMAE L ARE NG SESEERARSHREEEE D ETIEEST o

g EERSABENRE
AN REEERSANE A aEE N ERTIELES NIRRT -

h. HEEERRE

ERMATK THRESRRE - SEHRTESSETHTABEN  HPREAEENEBUAR LT ARES
EVEEMREMRE - 1O ARBTSBMERE LEMIF - UBRNENESHMBNREE - AREE
FENEERHEAFLTRIMAMEREERENSHERAS - WRESMAYRFEEEAERORHL
RET - EENSREEABSREBEREIES  NERMBMAMNBLEEAESR -
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1. BE)
h. BESEEBRR(E)
RAFE - EFLL2HELUIE -

EIEE

YITES

EREE AC
BR/NRZ ST AC
ARth ek AC
BROSE 4+ AB.C
BAEHTES

PRE ST ABC
ERE%E AC
EpEsyE S AC
A BEZAR AR 5

B: SR €% TIEY Hi

C MEEREEENEERENRS BRI EN

i. BEREHARIA
HEFERRGEMNS  ERZFENIHESEXHREZRTRTRAMAEL BR2BEIZES - A
Exged  URNSEBRERTRAMNES =ZREHEH

ERAEFEARNEZE RS BEZE S REMRHANER - UESKERELABERE - FEFHAERIF
BUEBAREERE  URSEZER  TRAFERIEHE—FEH -

j- DNEAME
RAMERARRRZRES » TRARRNAREEY - MEFA  ARAMESZR/TE LTRRIE320KNE
BEEEIIRE -

k. EFEREZSTIEE
RECEERTA  EFGEN T =F+_ARNEFTSHESTEEK - ARRAALREEEFEKRE
Zlbmds  YRAKEEEREEMS T  DRIFFFEZNEELER - —AEESTIENEZTSHE
B EREENREE WRRITELR  BR Bk UIREGRESETENER  c ARAEGHEESES
KREMREAAREZSE LANER  WEBARESHIATE - MEEEEXENEBHUBARST RR
A WERDBENEEEREZTLNRENAIRT - REBRTZEEAZ -
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EXRERRE (E)

2. E=EZXET
a. FHEEE
SR B SR BT EEERA LA NMEBB Y IR TEESR IR CENMERS L EAK - REREE BT
MEZEESMERE -

FHZE SR ERBARRKERSE  ERRREBTTEEHEMN  ZERMEMEEERARESREREZ
FMORRBEK - ARBRFHZESRA T —ERX - HFHZE SR ENEERSREEABNFHRA
EXSFLRERES - RESZBEEENERBLEEATRIZ TR

ZEEBFELBITRER -REBRFE  ZEERTRERH  URAMAEERAKERREREZH
REN - HFMEZ BB ERIKER LSRR INMT

HiE 81T
SENRE
PRERIGE(EE) 1/1
EEFE 1
ERESE 1

b. EREEE
BEREECHEN LB INTESEN - BREE SRS S A EBELIE - MELHARTELEHE
1B URBHEFE T EEELELR - TS v BEHEEBAEE AT SFANEX -

EREZEENIZRERE

) EREARNRSINEZEENORIR

) BHAEENTBER - &

iD) B RERAEE HERRGRAREZEREFEERRAN
REALEERTANERETEEEMBENRT  EFTCAERZEGRENE B LERAEED
EERZBREER LRAEFSREEBEDE B REEARREETERMEERE N ANBRRLE
BRI REREAREERESNBRTTRIRERTANEELSRERABNEIINFEREERR - AR
BEARRETEEERTHNBERRELEE GRS NRRE -

ERZEQEFELRTRARE MEESIRAERERIAMHENERE - BE-_Z—AF=RA=+—HI
FEHRE  BERZEGRRTAGH  UENAREMRMNZ S5 RRIRES - #ETSEERR R -

Vit S BN EEE R BRREE - ETERENARE T - OFRPXER_T—AFPHMEE
TRESNERZ AN mERT MAREEEE - URERBRTHEREHR -
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2. EEZEgH)
b. ZEREEE(HE)
ERZB e ERKB LFEHOLEEHRIIMT

HE 81T
2RI
PBRERIE(EE) 3/3
ERESE 3/3
BRLRHB A 3/3

c. REZEE
AL R AN TEREE A LEURMEB IR TEEREREENERMETEEAK - EFFATESR
RELZECER  ZEQZHESENERMEE AT Z AN -
REZEENEERHE I -

() BEEBENRE - RERER  EREAARSRATNNLERRTRHEERELOBBIRER
#

(if) MeAEaEERTTEEETERENAL
(i)  FPREIMIFITERRELIM o

REEEFERIBT-REE ZESIFEATERIARBINGE - HE-T-—HF=A=1+—HILF
B REZESCAR - REFARTEZTSNRE  RIE - ZIUECNEK - REZESERKEHESHNKX

QU
HE B
ZEERE SENRE
EEFARE(LE) 1/1
PRERICE 1
ERESE 11

3. [BEREX
a. RS
EEHRESEECREAERAFTHREASEFBOURR 2 ME#RE - EFEUTIANBEERMNERNTHBAS
HRBERERREFEAEEFELLEZEN  AESeAHESLEALERRER -
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BEERRE (E)

3. MBIEREZRE)

b. TtEER ATEE SEEAREE
EEZe2EBEASENRNITEEFE  DEER  URFHHEEERK - EFSBBHIFTEEMAIIES] -
PREEHEGLETEERINFAREERNBRE MEMEB S HREERBEATHEHEREES &
$IE A BB RIEHIFRIRT - HmEIETRFABARE R e A EB XKL EFTFLENAR - F&E
BEERRETERIANEEANTEETAEREER - UERERBHEATE MEMNBER - RRFEENEE
HIEHRR - BREIEFTS
c. ZEAETE <
HEZT—RAF-A-1+—HLEFE  AEERENZBMKETMEHSMIEBRNOT ¢
it 2 R
EZIRTE 2,260
FEEZIRTS 126
2,386
4. REER
a. BREBERATAEFIBRRAENEF(HHIBRRAE )
RIEARREHSERMAIESE  FETIRARFEAZRATS 2 —MREAREEAZRKTFTESTHR
AINEERBHRFRRERE - ZEMBEREVASENEN  YHEERREZEREXEARARRESNE
DT o
b. BRRODESEHEEAZESF
BRENMGRNESTSEEFMNEANBERE  JEXARBRNEENEEEEMT - WiTRREARBREEH
FREE » sk#XEHZir@eaglenice.com.hk
c. RERAZRIER

ARRMEBERAINRASHEARE  BEEOSRBEREBRRAGREZENEF (RRERIREERN
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Consolidated Income Statement
malE R

(Year ended 31 March 2015)
(BE=Z—AF=-A=1+—HILFE)

2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T4
REVENUE BERA 5 1,517,109 1,483,774
Cost of sales FHER AN (1,251,158) (1,289,041)
Gross profit EH 265,951 194,733
Other income and gain E AU A R Wz 5 8,925 4,452
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDIERAX (17,698) (21,526)
Administrative expenses TTHAX (120,794) (135,425)
Fair value changes on derivative financial PTHESRMTIANTE
instruments, net FE)HE (2,578) -
Finance costs BEERLAR 6 (3,495) (5,002)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB A8 F 7 130,311 37,232
Income tax expense FriSfif 2 10 (25,128) (15,362)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO A TR AL
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FEERA 11 105,183 21,870
HK cents HK cents
pe (1T il
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 72 BI#EH A FE(L
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FR2ER 13
Basic B-WIN 44
Diluted E 44

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

& BRFIEHRMIEE12
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mezEliak

(Year ended 31 March 2015)
(BE=—Z—AF=-A=1+—HILFE)

2015 2014
—Z—-hfF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 105,183 21,870

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) Ht2mEUzE, (X H)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) not to be A EZHIM NI EF D AT BN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  EAth 2 EUW S, (ZH) -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan ERENEE 2 BE T (EE) (277) 1,130

Other comprehensive income may be reclassified AEZHMAIEH D BEETHN

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib 2wz
Exchange differences on translation of TEBINE  ER =5
foreign operations 688 13,409

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE £ EH 2@k
YEAR, NET OF TAX (ERFE) 411 14,539

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE KA REESAELEE
YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 2ERRHEEE
THE COMPANY 105,594 36,409
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

(31 March 2015)
(Z2—RF=A=+—A1)

2015 2014
—E—ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENE 14 714,335 755,797
Prepaid land lease payments FE LSRR 15 72,407 74,678
Goodwill B 17 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 812,854 856,587
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 19 265,899 260,275
Accounts and bills receivables FEUER X R IR 20 124,192 134,263
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRRIE - e Rk
receivables HAb RN 16 47,327 27,862
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 21 63,750 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EHEEE 22 255,399 276,565
Total current assets MBEERE 756,567 698,965
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accounts payable JEAT 8RR 23 105,090 96,112
Accrued liabilities and other payables EEtaE R EMmENZE 25 86,612 81,366
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMIT A 26 9,110 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITER 27 237,621 339,620
Tax payable FERI 18 23,586 9,538
Total current liabilities MEAELRE 462,019 526,636
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 294,548 172,329
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABNRKR
CURRENT LIABILITIES b =R 1,107,402 1,028916
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBERE
Pension scheme obligation RIREEHEIRE 28 4,446 2,425
Deferred tax liabilities FERIES (& 29 15,425 14,574
Total non-current liabilities EmBBERE 19,871 16,999
Net assets BEFE 1,087,531 1,011,917
EQUITY BR
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE A
the Company EihER
Issued capital 2EITIRA 30 4,997 4,997
Reserves B 31 1,082,534 1,006,920
Total equity BRGRE 1,087,531 1,011,917
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING
#EEH BN
Director Director

BZ

EBEZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREZBER

(Year ended 31 March 2015)
(BE=—Z—AF=-A=1+—HILFE)

8 % (BRR ) 2= IR A BR 2 B Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 63

Share
premium
account
3
RER

Issued

Note capital

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EE
Bt

0

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve
REE

Capital
reserve

Retained
profits

B

At 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FENA—H 4997 472,586 (229) 33,748 97,988 406,392 1,015,482
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - 21870 21870
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FEEM2ENE :

Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan TEERFEIRERA - - - - - 1,130 1,130

Exchange differences on translation of NEBIERL

foreign operations ERER - - - - 13409 - 13409

Total comprehensive income for the year  FE 2 FIE 5 - - - - 13,409 23,000 36409
Transfer to reserve BREEE - - - 3,980 - (3980) -
Final 2013 dividend declared BER=Z—=FRERE 12 - - - - - (19987) (19987)
Interim 2014 dividend “Z-MERHRE 12 - - - - - (19987) (19987)
At31 March 2014 RZE-WE=A=+—A 4997 472,586* (229 37,728* 111,397 385438* 1011917
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE-RFNA—H 4,997 472,586 (229) 37,728 111,397 385,438 1,011,917
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - 105,183 105,183
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ EE R 2z,

for the year: (i) -

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan TREFEIRERE - - - - - (277) (277)

Exchange differences on translation of NEBNERZ

foreign operations EHESR - - - - 688 - 688

Total comprehensive income for the year  FE 2 EHEBE - - - - 688 104,906 105,594
Transfer to reserve BEZRE - - - 8,158 - (8,158) =
Interim 2015 dividend “Z-RERERE 12 - - - - - (29,980) (29,980)
At 31 March 2015 RZB-RF=A=1t—H 4,997 472,586* (229)* 45,886* 112,085* 452,206* 1,087,531

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,082,534,000
(31 March 2014: HK$1,006,920,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

*

ZEFBEREREHNGEMBRRIENGE
%1,082,5340008 T (ZE—WFE=A=+—H :

1,006,920,000/8 7T ) ©

J
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

(Year ended 31 March 2015)
(BE=Z—AF=-A=1+—HILFE)

2015 2014
—E-—R5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Rk 75 AT A 130,311 37,232
Adjustments for: LA IE B JE
Finance costs BEKAK 6 3,495 5,002
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (1,821) (1.417)
Write-off of items of property, plant and WiHE - BB
equipment MEEEIER 7 26 2458
Fair value losses on derivative financial PTESMIA
instruments NYEEE 7 9,110 -
Fair value gains on derivative financial TESRIA
instruments N ERE 7 (6,532) -
Depreciation e 7 60,539 61,856
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments — JEA + 3 78 & B #E 45 7 2,337 2,368
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HEWE - BE &
and equipment JAEEE W 5 (268) -
197,197 107,499
Increase in inventories FEEM (5,624) (30,545)
Decrease in accounts and bills receivables FEUR BR 3R K = iEOR 10,071 49,741
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other ~ FETFRIE - 2% R EAth
receivables JFEUS RIS AN (19,463) (5519)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FETBERIZ AN, CRl) 8,978 (12,708)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and ~ FE5T 8 & K H fh FE 3018
other payables 40 (i) 5,246 (15,103)
Increase in pension scheme liabilities BIREETEIAEEM 2,271 1,363
Cash generated from operations EEEACRG 198,676 94,728
Interest paid EAHLE (3,495) (5,002)
Dividends paid 2RRE (29,980) (39,974)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFISH (1,928) (12,303)
Overseas tax paid BHEINMRIA (8,311) 7,711)
Net cash flows from operating activities REREFEB REREFE 154,962 29,738
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ARREETBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE « HE MREHEB FI5
plant and equipment, net HIEFEE 433 454
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME  BEX
equipment REIEE (18,931) (20,509)
Proceeds from derivative financial instruments 28 B 974 & & T A P15 208 6,532 -
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments ~ UgEE ] HERE (63,750) -
Interest received BHFIE 1,821 1417

Net cash flows used in investing activities REE S 2 RenEFE (73,895) (18,638)




Annual Report 2015 —E—RFFHR & 3 (BIRR ) #= B & PR 2 7] Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 65 J

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GeRenER(E

(Year ended 31 March 2015)
(BE=ZZ—AF=A=1+—HILFE)

2015 2014
—E-—0F —EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ARBEEBHERE
ACTIVITY
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (101,775) (48,026)
Net cash flows used in financing activity BrmEEgcBeneEFE (101,775) (48,026)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERASEEBARMORE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (20,708) (36,926)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYIzHeMRE
of year £EIEHE 276,565 309,352
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R 88~ S/ 2 R{E (458) 4,139
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND HH&ACHERERELEEER
OF YEAR 255,399 276,565
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASHAND R&RBRSZEEEE Z&H DT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re KBTS 22 196,619 275316
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAREIEHB DR
maturity of less than three months when =1{ER ZIFEH
acquired EEER 22 58,780 1,249
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EFHEEE 255,399 276,565
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Statement of Financial Position
B A& AR OR 3R

(31 March 2015)
(Z2—RF=A=+—A1)

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

2015 2014
—ZE-AHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FH&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AT ZRE 18 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUH B N T 18 1,219,747 1,048,216
Loan to a subsidiary BERTHERR 18 218,400 218,400
Prepayments TEfT A 16 130 105
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEMEEAE 22 9,270 623
Total current assets BB EMRE 1,447,547 1,267,344
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B AR 18 640,768 453,188
Accrued liabilities fEstafE 25 2 7
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 26 7,523 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 27 96,875 217,224
Tax payable JERTTRIR 1,431 1322
Total current liabilities MEBBERE 746,599 671,741
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 700,948 595,603
Net assets BEFE 744,316 638,971
EQUITY (=N
Issued capital BT 30 4,997 4,997
Reserves HE 31 739,319 633,974
Total equity BEAR4E 744,316 638,971
CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING
EEH BRI
Director Director
EE 2
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Notes to Financial Statements
p s e R

(31 March 2015)
(Z2—RF=A=+—A1)

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B,
Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which
because the Company has not early adopted the revised disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), are those
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B Rk By et (48)
(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RF=A=+—8H)

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.
Amendments to HKFRS  Investment Entities
10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKAS 32

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
HKAS 39 Accounting

HK(FRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendment to HKFRS
2 included in Annual
Improvements 2010-
2012 Cycle

Amendment to
HKFRS 3 included in
Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to
HKFRS 13 included in
Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
1 included in Annual
Improvements 2011~
2013 Cycle

Definition of Vesting Condition'

Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination'

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

! Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B sk By et ()
(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RE=A=+—8H)

23 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT

YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

2.3

statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
HKFRS 10 and its Associate or Joint Venture?
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception?

Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

HKFRS 11 Operations?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?®
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative?
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 16 and and Amortisation?
HKAS 38
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions'
HKAS 19
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?
HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs”

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
5 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B Rk By et (48)
(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RF=A=+—8H)

23 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT

YET ADOPTED (Continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2016.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of

these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is as follows:

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in January
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except for those
described in note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 April 2015. None of the amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the amendments

most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics used to
assess whether the segments are similar. The amendments also clarify
that a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required
to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating

decision maker.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial

position.

2.3
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(© the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

2.4
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those

units or groups of units.

2.4
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
actin their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and goodwill), the asset'’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined

for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(iif)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment

have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance  Over the lease terms

leases
Buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms or
20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment ~ 20%

and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement in finance costs for loans.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to income statement over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the

income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the income statement — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

2.4

8 % (BRR ) 2= IR A BR 2 B Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 83

FESHBRBE@®

TREEREGE)
HRHENTHEE
BRAAHEENSREE  ARERE—
BERHRYREDAFBIEBRBREIK
BHRBERE ML -

IRAHHENEEZERE  RIBRE
fﬂZK(ﬁfEE@E’JZ}S@ﬁﬁE%%@Eﬁ#
DNHE 2z MR Z R ST AAR £ R E R
PHERHBREBEMSNERE  tHEMtE
EREE L - WHEWRERAER -

EABERAIHEENERRENERT -

FERBEEERENFENRRRAKE
B o [ KiE | & FE R E RKAFT
i Ml &G EAFEBERERKA

WEHE - IRFEREEE  REEBE
(BWBERARER D FEME 2HNZE
B ORI E SRR EE R TR R RUE
BifB) gt Emembagh - YHER
HRAER - DRRAHEENERTA
FEMREBBR TN SHERERED - AR
FEMREBEREN  SEEEEME
[ s o AR o

RTE B AR IR RE ] - FERFIE -
RIEHE - AEBFGHEZERE - 21
REEB AFEERRANHARKIEE

J



84

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited & 35 (EiBR ) 12 IR B BR 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B Rk By et (48)
(31 March 2015)
(Z2—R&F=A=+—8)

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign
currency forward contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(Continued)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period,
the derivative is classified as non-current (or separated into
current and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the
host contract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can be
made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure incurred
in the construction cost of an infrastructure project, are recognised at
their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into

the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions
to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income statement
as incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in the Group's employer
contributions vests fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer

contributions.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme for their employees who are registered
as permanent residents in Mainland China. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in

accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation

method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the income statement by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

net interest expense or income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
retranslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e,, translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
income statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have
a material effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each financial year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2015 was HK$26,112,000 (2014: HK$26,112,000). Further details are
givenin note 17.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills receivables.
Allowances are applied to accounts and bills receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that there are five
reportable operating segments, based on the location of customers
(the destination of sales), including the United States of America (the
“USA"), Mainland China, Europe, Japan and others. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and returns
that are different from each other.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except that
interest income and other unallocated income, fair value changes
on derivative financial instruments, and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

EERSHEHRMAE (@)

fEEt 2 FREM(E)

EERE
AEBSVSFETHERTERAE -
ErRAGFHEMEI R REELSE
2z EAEAE - HEHEREER - A5E
BAMFTRSELEENMEELCBHAKE
LRE /\ZEU““A‘ﬁzﬁﬁiﬁ“ﬁ L‘F =1
ZERSREZEME - WERZE—AF
—A=+— HZ%E@ﬁmmmw%n
(=2 P4 : 26,112,000 7C) ° #E—H&
BHEFAHEE7 ©

RIEBIERRE

R BIARE S M AR B R4 2 AT U Bl
FHE SRR L RERE o ME B HIE
MBBBRERT L EEK O - SR
WEESR R RIBEH A - BRIREFEE
PRI R b7 o B RR A RSORRIEHI
RAGEREREA - AAZEBHGEE
@%WZKH&%E&%EEEZ%/}?E@ZEE
HEEBRTZE

ﬁ(«.—-é. xgﬁ*;l,
MEBEEME - NEBEUEPAEM(HE

Bei) RER  BERERRSKED
BB BIEEE - PEIREE BN - BAR
HAibimE o %% 8B R R g A @ 3R A B 7

Hip D Ef B L FHEIR o

EEERYERELESE  WEELE
FAERD I RRIFFTEEAEK - DERE
TIRBE A RE D TS - mamED
R A G ARG ANRTFT 2 - 45

BB ADEF O EH N EAREEBRF A
wAFTERR B AR ELTEA
FLEBWA ~ EfhRRERIA R Mz - HT4
CBITARNTESHLARES L -

DREETBRADEERE

o
™
o
;g;
48

BERKREEE -
ﬁj‘iEQ%T\@%ﬂi TELRE - REAZ%E
BEEREERE



Annual Report 2015 —ZF—RFEFEHR

& 5= (BRR ) #2 IR A BR 2 T Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 95

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B sk By et ()
(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RE=A=+—8H)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4. RESEER®E)

Group - 2015 rEE-—FT-HF
Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
£ HE AR BN A& HithE &&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR THT TR TR
Segment revenue: PREFHA
Sales to external customers  EETFHREP 499,748 309,934 289,725 103,728 313,974 1,517,109
Segment results PEEE 70,147 44,037 44,220 16,553 49,541 224,498
Interest and other MERERGRMA
unallocated income and gain Rtz 8,925
Fair value changes on derivative 744 BT ANT(E
finandial instruments BHFE (2,578)
Unallocated expenses AEERTH (100,534)
Profit before tax BRALRF 130,311
Income tax expense FEHES (25,128)
Profit for the year attributable KA A1HEA AJELS
toownersofthe Company &7 105,183
Segment assets NREE 407,990 282,700 204,838 62,926 227,268 1,185,722
Unallocated assets AEREE 383,699
1,569,421
Segment liabilities NEaGE 61,442 44,773 43,956 16,588 47,169 213,928
Unallocated liabilities FEEEE 267,962
481,890
Other segment information: ~ Eft P fE&R :
Depreciation and REREH
amortisation 16,001 8,934 7,782 2,633 8,516 43,866
Unallocated amounts AEELE 19,010
62,876
Capital expenditure * BRRX 7,725 3,538 2,715 792 3,040 17,810
Unallocated amounts FEESE 12
18,931

* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment.

BEARRZREME - BERRENRE -

J
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. REIEER(#)

Group - 2014 AEH-—ZF—NE
Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
Ed: REIKEE BN A& Hitit & e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR THR TR TR
Segment revenue: PREFHA
Sales to external customers  SEEFIREFE 464,754 339,199 218,513 151,238 310,070 1,483,774
Segment results NHEEE 43,402 29,774 15,914 7,920 21,786 118,796

Interest and other unallocated 7|2 & &t A R EURA

income and gain Rz 4,452
Unallocated expenses AR (86,016)
Profit before tax BRANER 37,232
Income tax expense FisHES (15,362)

Profit for the year attributable XA B AJE(S

toownersofthe Company &7 21,870
Segment assets PEEE 394,323 282,594 190,103 101,361 243,010 1,211,391
Unallocated assets RERLAE 344,161

1,555,552

Segment liabilities AR 53,936 43,981 32,570 11,903 35,172 177,562
Unallocated liabilities AERARE 366,073
543,635

Other segment information: A EEHR :

Depreciation and nER#H
amortisation 16,180 8,919 5,996 3,814 8,863 43,772
Unallocated amounts FEELE 20,452
64,224
Capital expenditure * BAER 8,502 3,804 2227 1172 3,550 19,345
Unallocated amounts KMEEEE 1,164
20,509

* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment. * BREYREYYE « BERRENRE o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information - non-current assets

& 2= (BFR ) $#2 3% 5 BR 2 B Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 97

ResEER®)
HEER -FRDHEE

2015
—Z-AE

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fix FHAT

Hong Kong 5 17,238 18,201
Mainland China FR B A B 655,851 695,051
Indonesia ENE 139,765 143,335
812,854 856,587

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$874,385,000 (2014: HK$677,915,000) and
HK$441,759,000 (2014: HK$403,117,000) were derived from sales to
the largest customer and the second largest customer of the Group,
respectively. The above amounts include sales to group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these customers.

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been
eliminated on consolidation.

LIFERBEEEREREEMEILRE

DEY -

ERXEEFHNEHR
REBKREFE—RE_ABLNEEMS
EEUA D B £874,385000/8 7T (—ZF—Y
£ 677,915,000/ 7T ) K441,759,00078 7T (=
T —PO4F : 403,117,000/87C) o L& %EH
BR—HEANZ LB EREHNERE
HISHE o
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 5. EXWAREMKARWKE#)

(Continued)

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gain is as ANEEE S WA R EARA R ES 2 AT
follows: IR
2015 2014
—E-—AF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHAT
Revenue =E L ON
Sale of goods BEmiHE 1,517,109 1,483,774
Other income Hg A
Bank interest income ERITRLEMA 1,821 1417
Income derived from available-for-sale investments AJ{ft H &R E U A 1,834 -
Government grants* BB & * 2,820 -
Others Hi 2,182 3,035
8,657 4452
Gain &
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and HEWE - MENREBEEE
equipment 2 Uz 268 -
8,925 4452
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these * 2 B B AR E R AV IR SRR B AR
grants. EIF o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BE N

2015 2014
=F-5H% —TlF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within BRERNBEHEE Y
five years RITERFE 3,495 5,002
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBALEF

AEBEBRBADGF AR (GEA) THIE

18
2015
—E-—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 1,251,158 1,289,041
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN S 2,446 2,506
Depreciation (Note 14)* e (FizE14)* 60,539 61,856
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEAT 4 30 FH & R
(Note 15)* (M5E15)* 2,337 2,368
Employee benefit expenses EEEAZL
(excluding directors’ remuneration — Note 8): (TREEEME —MEs) :
Wages and salaries IENHS 331,457 380,760
Pension contributions, RREETEIGER
including a pension cost for defined BREREREEMNETEIR
benefit plan of HK$2,271,000 SRR R AN2,271,0007 7T
(2014: HK$1,363,000) (ZZ—W%F
(Note 28) 1,363,000/ 7T ) (Bt 7t28) 50,793 54,815
Less: Forfeited contributions o BRI (1,442) (872)
Net pension contributions RS EIHFOFE 49,351 53,943
Total employee benefit expenses* 4R BAE RS 380,808 434,703
Minimum lease payments under operating leases — + i M2 F&ELFHE
in respect of land and buildings* SEB SR - 3418
Foreign exchange differences, net e X ZEFE 1,921 4,270
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment — ##547% ~ BE R REE R 26 2,458
Income derived from available-for-sale investments A it & & & HY UL A (1,834) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net, ANHEFER ()
Derivative financial instruments — transactions TESRTATTS
not qualified as hedges: HHRGEHNRS
— matured during the year —RERNEH (6,532) -
— not yet matured —AREIH 9,110 -

*

Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which are

also included in the cost of inventories sold disclosed above:

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Employee benefit expenses

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of land and buildings

e

FEfS L AR B I 8

EERAX N

T RETREREZ
SEAS R

BRGHTEEATIALXAKED

FERRZ S

2015
—E-REF

HK$’000
THEx

41,996
1,870
328,745

i

41,877
1,896
372,076

3418

J
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. ESRITHAZME

REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed RNEFEZRITHAH N RE ETHRA
pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 161 of the predecessor Hong RATEARTHEDI (328 ) F161 EHKE
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: W
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT
Fees we 360 360
Other emoluments: HAGE S -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDREF 5,470 4,708
Discretionary bonuses BETEAT 2,300 -
Pension scheme contributions RIREEEIGER 550 518
8,320 5,226
8,680 5,586
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ BIYFEHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FANTHELIFRTESZ 2HBEN
the year were as follows: K
2015 2014
—E-hHF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZFELE 120 120
Mr. Lu Chi Chant ERRELE 120 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony LR yB S 120 120
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRWHEEMENBIIENTES

non-executive directors during the year (2014 Nil). e (ZF—mHF - ) -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EERTHAZME )
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefitsin  Discretionary scheme Total
kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R BifestaE
ik ENEA Mg #;X MeasE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THT THI THAT THT BT
2015 —E2-IF
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BAALE - 1664 1,150 230 3,044
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying YN - 1,560 1,150 216 2926
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BRETE - = = = -
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, BREERT
Christina - 2,246 - 104 2350
- 5470 2,300 550 8320
2014 ZTmEF
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEAEE - 1664 - 230 1894
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying Bk - 1589 - 216 1,805
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BRbRE - - - - -
Ms. Chen Fang Me, BrEELT
Christina - 1455 - 7 1527
- 4,708 - 518 5,226
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or AEERTEAEEHELRE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. MEERMNE 2 25 -
The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include T REEN e W ABIERER
the estimated monetary value of the Group’s owned premises FIITESEE F A ([4EEA])
provided rent-free to an executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk Rt EHEMNAEB S BYE 25T
Sing (“Mr. Chung”), during the year. The estimated rental value BE - HE_T—AF=A=1+—
of such accommodation was HK$120,000 (2014: HK$129,000) BIEFE  ZEB2EHEER
for the year ended 31 March 2015. 120,000/ 70 ( ZF — 4 : 129,000

BTT)
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEABSHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2014: FRN AEmaFMEERE=2(=%
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 —WF: =R)EFE - FABREHFMN
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2014: two) BEAE LR - REEZT—H
non-director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31 March FZA=+—HALEFER B TMAE(Z
2015 are set out below: T—NF - ME)RaMenFEEREES
B E BN -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-1F —Z—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREMEF 4,517 3,645
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAT - 300
Pension scheme contributions RS EEIHR 338 338
4,855 4,283
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose MeN T TTSHENESTNEESREES
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: HEBWT :
Number of employees
EEHB
2015
—E-AfF
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HKS$2,000,000 1,500,001 702 2,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 223,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HKS$3,500,000 3,000,00178 7T 23,500,000/ 7T -
2 2
10. INCOME TAX 10. FrEHL

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC being effective
on 1 January 2008, the corporate income tax rate for all enterprises in
Mainland China is 25%.

FN - BBNEBIRTCEBELENGRE
RBUEFILA165%( =T —PO4F : 16.5%)F
RIERE - HAbih 5 ERFBUE M BiE
ARIE AL B E B ATEERNIRITH R
§ °

BER-ZTZNF—A—BERHNFED
ERERE  RRABEMABCEMNDER
SRR A25% ©
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10.
Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in Mainland
China, a company may set off losses incurred by it in a financial year
against profits made by it in the succeeding financial year or years,
subject to a maximum of five financial years.
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FRE®i (@)

BB EAERE SRR - ZD
A HN — AR BEEEL Y B - IR
SR E % —Esk 2 REE 25T
B85S TERBREANBERE -

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF — T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FBT

Current tax charge for the year: REEREBEZL

Hong Kong &% 11,889 9,520
Elsewhere Hibibh 5 11,200 6,506
Overprovision of current tax in respect of prior years 387 4 [Z Fi B A RE R (302) (1,177)
Deferred (Note 29) RIE (I 5E29) 2,341 513
Total tax charge for the year AEEHIEL N @5 25,128 15,362

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

ERRAARRT REXEDKHE A RCE
LTS RLAME B OATE R AT E 2 BB A&
M2 AR BIR BRI R E 2 HIAR

effective tax rate is as follows: S AT
Group
REE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before tax B 75 B A 130,311 37,232
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in the tax BB RIS R AR R R A
jurisdictions concerned BAHERFTE 2 BIE 26,715 6,654
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT EEZRNE]
previous years TIEVEH A (302) (1177)
Income not subject to tax BART Z WA (1,022) (1,820)
Expenses not deductible for tax TRz ER 2,286 2,589
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the HEAREH 7 REMB AT
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 7] 2 % F 59 TEF1 %4 2 S/ 48 2,341 513
Tax loss utilised from previous periods A AR B BB S 518 (4,890) -
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEEE = 8,603
Tax charge at the Group's EREEBERMERAE
effective rate 2B 25,128 15,362

'¢‘
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11.

12.

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a loss of HK$3,270,000 (2014:
HK$3,210,000), excluding dividend income from a subsidiary of
HK$135,800,000 (2014: Nil) and interest income from a subsidiary of
HK$2,795,000 (2014: HK$4,382,000), which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (Note 31).

DIVIDENDS

Dividends paid during the year: FREMNRKRE
Final in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2014 — Nil
(2014: final dividend of HK4 cents per

ordinary share, in respect of the

11.

12.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

RRBEE ABIEFERR

 E—E-RAF=ZA=+—RALFEEAR
AR AEEERE 5 58 15 E5 183,270,000
BT (ZZF—MMF : 32100008 7T )
BETABE—ZRMNBARIZIMRBREKRA
1358000008 T(ZF—0F : ) K —K
B B8 A R SZ A FI Bk A2,795,000/8 70 (=&
—PO4F : 4382,000787T) « ERAAREI
AR MR BR (FEE31) -

RE

2015 2014

—E-1F —Z—E

HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
TAT

HeE—_T—N&F=A=+—H
IFFBRFERARE —F
(ZE2—F - HEZT—=
FZA=+—HUHBFEXR

financial year ended 31 March 2013) ARG B TR AR AL - 19,987
Interim — HK6 cents (2014: HK4 cents) per FHANR B — B E EARe B
ordinary share (ZZ—M4F : 478(L) 29,980 19,987
29,980 39974
Proposed final dividend HK6.5 cents FORAHIR E—E AT @A
(2014: Nil) per ordinary share 65B(L(ZE—UF : &) 32,479 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the number of
shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the dividend
payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
of HK$105,183,000 (2014: HK$21,870,000) and 499,680,000 (2014:
499,680,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 as
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
those years.

13.

RERZ FRRPBR SRR ARERE
BETZBRNBBAE  WEFARBRR
RERBRBERSHERT AEE - &
STEIRR L AR E RS, o

RARERABIEERER

ERERAMDIBEFRARQRAES
A JE 15 5% $1105,183,000 7T ( — & — Y
1218700008 7T) 0 MEFARAE LT
499,680,0000% ( —Z—PO4F : 499,680,0008% )
TRRETE

REE-F-RFR-F-ME=A
TH-RIEEE  HmEERERE %
B - EU B 2 5] B SRR -
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group
31 March 2015

14. Y% BRERRKHE
Fr5H
—E-AF=A=+—H

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
land and Leasehold Plantand equipmentand
buildings  improvements machinery motor vehicles Total
HE e KA #E-
THREF NEEE BERRE RERAE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THT TR TR
Cost: A
At beginning of year 3] 721,690 115,610 221,409 73,532 1,132,241
Additions AE 4,169 5118 8,008 1,636 18,931
Disposals HE - - (961) (1,7111) (2,672)
Write-off ke - - - (171) (171)
Exchange realignment i 5 A% 363 84 112 (604) (45)
At 31 March 2015 W-Z-RF=A=+—-H 726,222 120,812 228,568 72,682 1,148,284
Accumulated depreciation: ZRENE
At beginning of year =) 84,027 89,263 145,252 57,902 376,444
Provided during the year FREE 24,197 10,584 18,959 6,799 60,539
Disposals HE - - (937) (1,570) (2,507)
Write-off A = - - (145) (145)
Fxchange realignment BB H AR 44 7 84 (581) (382)
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RF=A=+—-H 108,268 99,918 163,358 62,405 433,949
Net book value: REFE -
At31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=+—H 617,954 20,894 65,210 10,277 714,335
Group AEE
31 March 2014 —Z-WE=HA=+—H
Cost: A :
At beginning of year F1] 714,880 110,838 214,120 73,259 1,113,097
Additions NE 332 12,851 6,162 1,164 20,509
Disposals HeE - - - (1,420) (1420)
Wite-off A - (9.268) - (26) (9.294)
Exchange realignment ERRE 6,478 1,189 1,127 555 9,349
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=f=F—H 721,690 115,610 221,409 73,532 1132241
Accumulated depreciation: ZIEME
At beginning of year E17 59457 83,245 127 404 50987 321,093
Provided during the year FREE 24276 12,049 17,958 7573 613856
Disposals HE - - - (966) (966)
Write-off Hiss - (6,836) - - (6,836)
Exchange realignment B 5 R 294 805 (110) 308 1297
At31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=1—H 84,027 89,263 145252 57,902 376,444
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=ZA=F—AH 637,603 26,347 76,157 15,630 755,797

'¢‘
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14, #13 » BERRE (&)

An analysis of the carrying amount of the land and buildings of the RMERR - AREZ L REFZRE
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2015 2014
= ZTmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Land and buildings held on medium REBAPERLNEE 2
term leases in Hong Kong T iEF 15,596 16,069
Land and buildings held on medium B LASIM [ LA BRFE 4
term leases outside Hong Kong BHZ L RIEF 601,329 620,529
Buildings held on long term leases outside AR AN [E LA R BAFE )

Hong Kong FAZET 1,029 1,065
Total carrying amount WREREE 617,954 637,663
At 31 March 2015, the Group has undertaken not to charge one of the RIE—RF=A=+—H  KEBEEH
Group's buildings with a net carrying amount of HK$71,041,000 (2014: NEHAREBE AP —ERTEFEE71,041,000
HK$73,560,000). PETC(ZZ— U4 : 73,560,000/ 70 ) IEF o

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FEfL#HEERE
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FHREE 77,013 78438
Amortisation recognised during the year (Note 7) R4 FERREE 85 (P EE7) (2,337) (2,368)
Exchange realignment PE H R 68 943
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZKEHEE 74,744 77,013
Current portion included in prepayments, STAFERNMFIE -« #1e N EMER
deposits and other receivables (Note 16) RIB 2 BVERER > (BiYsE16) (2,337) (2,335)

Non-current portion FERNERFL > 72,407 74678
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15.

16.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments of
the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

15.
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AN EERIERE
RB|ERR - AEERN T HHAEREALZ
FREEDTAN T

2015 2014

et —E-lF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Long term leases outside Hong Kong BBREIN N RAFAL 3,108 3,216
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong EABFEIN 2 AL 71,636 73,797
74,744 77,013

One of the Group's prepaid land lease payments with a net book value
of HK$1,568,000 (2014: HK$1,597,000), together with the leasehold
buildings thereon, has been provided as rent-free accommodation to
Mr. Chung, an executive director of the Company during the year.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

16.

REEHE AP —IHIREFE,568000/8 0 (=
T —PO4F : 1,597,000/ 7T) 2 FES LHAHE
B ERE EMEESEFRFERIRMEE
BESRE(RRAR—ZRITES) 22 ME
fﬁ" °

BMARIE - BERHEMERR

Group Company
EE ¥ NN

2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-HF —T MF —F-HF —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FAT F#ET FHT
Prepaid land lease payments TEf LA EF0E 15 2,337 2,335 - -
Prepayments SEARECE] 27,164 11,595 130 105
Deposits and other receivables &4 I H th fE U I8 17,826 13,932 - -
47,327 27,862 130 105

None of the financial assets included in the above balances is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

LR B RN S EE A E R B SO
B - BEEA LREFIRESRANSRE
B I HIN R A SR -

J
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17.

GOODWILL

Cost and carrying amount: BB R ARENE
At beginning and end of year REF R F 4%

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

2015
—2-1F

HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TAT

26,112 26,112

The Group's goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating unit
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments
(the “Unit"). The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow
projections based on a five-year period financial budget approved by
senior management. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting
actual and prior year performance and development expectations.
The key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the budgeted
gross margin which is the average gross profit margin achieved in
the year immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate
of 14%, which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
Unit. The cash flow projections are prepared based on the assumption
that the cash-generating unit will have revenue based on the actual
sales order amount and revenue forecasted by the head of the sales
department for the first year, and then maintain a 5% growth rate
thereafter. The directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
Since the recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying
amount, the directors consider there was no impairment of the
goodwill at the end of the reporting period.

AEBZAREIRBRFTEDREAK
HEFBEECREEFEM(TZEM]D -
ZEMLz AW ESEIREEREERE
E o MEREEIREASREEARSE
2 AFMPBREMBEANZ RS RET
8 MRBEZREIRRER  BEF
BEREANEHER - ReREBHUZEE
BRABABEZENX(NZREBEFE
A% FEATERZ FHIEME) RERE
149 (THERBE BT S IR AR B2 BB B B 2 A5 72
Rf)  REeRERARBREELSEM
H e R RER R - ZERIREE
BRHER ESBRHENETERNEFE
MM ERTRR - ERAR %I RE - B
FHE - HAZFERRAUESELHRY
2 BIreSYZELZARAERD
AW EE o R B AT E R
I HIRRIE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RKBRATZRE
Company
PN
2015 2014
=F-IF —FmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LTI - B 43,368 43,368
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and BN T 2 R R 2R TE AR
repayable on demand. o8 RIAEETRES o
The loan to a subsidiary included in the Company's current assets is BFIHBATZ BERBIERARNGT Y RE
unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates of 1.5% and 2.2% (2014: 1.9%) BEN  BEEME - DRILAEFRE15%K%
per annum and repayable on demand or within one year. 220 ( —ZF—PO4F  19%) it B R ABIRENR

R —FREE -

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the TERINEAANRTHEBEAT  HEESRR
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or B S NTYAEBRERNEESEAY
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BRERANEBEESEY TBIHD - 1%
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, BESERA HHHEMHBARERE
result in particulars of excessive length. SFEEBERTE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TERBATEBOT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued share/ equity attributable to
registration and paid-up the Company
business registered capital FAREERBEA L
HMEL &R BRTRE,/ 2015 2014  Principal activities
REXRH HrEMERX ZB-EF —T-NF IEXE
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2; 100 100 Investment holding
EX(EXEE)ERLA BE Non-voting deferred BER

HK$10,000 (Note (@)
(2014: Ordinary HKS2;
Non-voting deferred
HK$10,000)
ERRIET
BRFREER
10000 T (i (a)
(ZF-mE:
LRBBTL
BREBEER
100007 7T)

WEOLE)ERERAF PRC/Mainland China U5$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("YM (Shantou)") (Notes (b)and () B,/ Bl Af (2014: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(T#ECLE) ) (o &) 23,500,000 7T EERBEEHREAK

(ZZ-mF:
235000005 7T)

o
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18.

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business
AR/ B
REFY

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued share/
paid-up
registered capital
BERTRG
BREMER

18.

—E-1F

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

RHBARZRE®)

Percentage of

equity attributable to

the Company

AAAEGEERA AL

2015 2014

TN

Principal activities

HRECLE)EXBBAT
("YY (Shantou)") (Notes (b) and (c))
(THRECUEE) ) (M0 k()

Eagle Nice Development Limited

EXERARLA

Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited
HE(BER)EXERDA

Maitex (EAG) Limited
FB(EXEE)ERAR

EREFHEXBB A
("Maitex PRC") (Notes (b) and ()
(TERRS ) (o) R(Q)

King Eagle (EAG) Limited
tE(BEXER)ERLA

SECLE)EXARAT
("KE (Shantou)") (Notes (b) and (c))
(I&ECLEE) ) (b R()

BRGEEHRERRF
("Hung Eagle Garment')
(Notes (b) and (c))
(TERZE D (HEoR(C)

PRC/Mainland China
HE /B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
s

)l

Hong Kong

PRC/Mainland China

E/hEAR

Hong Kong

PRC/Mainland China
B/ REARE

PRC/Mainland China
E /R

HK$15,000,000
(2014: HK$15,000,000)
15,000,000 7T
(ZZ-—mE:
15,00000057T)

HKST (2014: HKS1)
18T
(ZZ2—WF : 1871)

HKS 1T (2014; HKS 1)
18T
(ZZ—m&F 1)

HK$1,000 (2014: HK$1,000)
10008 7T
(ZZ—[H4F 1 100087T)

HK$40,000,000
(2014: HK$40,000,000)
40,000,000 7T
(ZZ-—mE:
40,000,000 7T)

HKST (2014; HKS1)
18T
(Z2—mF 871)

U5$2,680,000
(2014: US$2,680,000)
2,680,000 7T
(Z2-mF:
2,680,000%7T)

US$4,000,000
(2014 US54,000,000)
4,000,000 7T
(ZZ2-mF
4000,000%7T)

100 100 Manufacture and trading of

sportswear and garments

TEREEEPRRAK

100 100 Manufacture and trading of

sportswear and garments
EERBEEPRRAK

100 100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments
GEREEFPRRAK
100 100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments
HEREEEHREAK
100 100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments

EEREEEPRRAR

100 100 Manufacture and trading of

sportswear and garments
YEREEEDRRAR

100 100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments

EEREEEYRRAK

100 100 Manufacture and trading of

sportswear and garments

EEREEEPRRAK
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18.

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

business
EMARL/ B
REEHY

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued share/
paid-up
registered capital
BERTRG
BREMER

18.

RHBARZRE®)

Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company
LONG; 3% Y

2015
—B-IF

Principal activities

TERH

Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Hong Kong HKST (2014: HKST)
Holdings Limited iy 18T
EX(HR)ERERAT (Z2—m#: 1#7x)
P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$30,000,000

("EN Indonesia’) EfE (2014: US$27,000,000)
((ExER)) 30000000%7C
(Z2-mF:

27,000,000%T)

Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited - Hong Kong HK$10,000

B£(IE)ERERAT E5 (2014:HK$10000)
1000077

(ZB—ImF : 1000047

EX(B2)RKARAT PRC/Mainland China US$25,000,000

('EN (Yifeng)') (Notes (b)and ()~ B /R Bl ARE (2014: US$25,000,000)
(TEx(28) (Mo ko) 25,000,000 T
(Z2-mF:

25,000,000%T)

Notes:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to
attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus
assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the nominal
amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up).

(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou), Hung Eagle Garment

and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these entities are not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global
network.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

100

100

100

100

100 Investment holding

RARR

100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments

EEREEEBRRAK

100 Investment holding

REER

100 Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments

EEREEEBRIAK

B ERRERY SR ERRE - LE
BRERGRES LIRE - UREBEREE
BANESTARAKEE(CERNERY
38 % 48 £1100,000,000,000,00078 7T 2k T A
AIEBRIEE AL - BERO ZHRSA
BRSIVER R MEERRSN) ©

HWECOWSR) ~ MECLER) - BRFH - &
EOWSR) - BRZENEX(EY) HRE
PR INEBERE -

HZEBEBNEEFBRRALEEELKE
FHEME K EREE LR E AT
i o

LAFAEMBARRARRRERSE °
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19. INVENTORIES 19. FE
Group
rEE
2015 2014
ZE-HF —E—UFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Raw materials JRAT 112,572 100,954
Work in progress TR 70,932 126,978
Finished goods BURY SR 82,395 32,343
265,899 260,275
20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. FEWERIRREE

The Group's accounts and bills receivables mainly relate to a few
recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit period is generally
for a period of 30 to 45 days (2014: 30 to 45 days). The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group. The accounts and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing. At the end of the reporting period, 76% (2014:
60%) and 18% (2014: 16%) of the total accounts and bills receivables
were due from the Group's largest customer and the second largest
customer, respectively.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RNEEZ EWIRZR R ZIEE B EE TR
MEERINEFIER - EEH—A30
KEASK(ZZT U4 : 30KE45K) » K
BB AR EERBERBBRSRS
BV BEERBRIESIEREKT - mH
K2 EHAAEBEERETHERN - &
BRI R B A S AR IR - RS IR -
REBMBARELRE - REFE D MG AE
E R R AR 76%( ZF — L F ¢
60%) K2 18%( = Z—PY4F : 16%) ©

BEARER L BERR R REREE
SRHHMRE DT

Group

rEE
2015 2014

—ZE-hfF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHAT
Within 30 days 30K 79,421 81,222
31 to 60 days 31E60K 37,273 34,793
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 2,592 10,193
Over 90 days 90RLA 4,906 8,055
124,192 134,263
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)  20. EWERRREE (&)
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers AR BRI AR B A FEUR BR R - B3 HA D 4
for whom there was no recent history of default. RERFE R P AER o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number B E R AN ER AR AR EE RS
of customers that have a good track records with the Group. Based on RUMEERSNE TREFIER - RIEA
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that AREE AAREZRABAELRE
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances B ARSHEBUERREEERER
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the EETRAERDER AT 2EKE -
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21, AEERE
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
Unlisted investment funds, at cost FLETIREES - BAATIER 63,750 -
It represents short-term wealth management products offered A ERE RF BB NIRITIR MRS 5
by commercial banks in the PRC. As at 31 March 2015, unlisted BiER R_T-—AF=A=+—H"
investment funds with a carrying amount of HK$63,750,000 were ARTEI(E63,750,000/8 TTHVIE E IR AR SR
stated at cost less impairment because these funds do not have ERATIBRRESER - ARFELMREAES
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot WE RIS TISIRE - AR St
be measured reliably. SHEATE-
22. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22, ReERBREEEER

Group Company
rEE AT
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —E-NF ZEB-HF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT FET THT
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHERE 196,619 275316 1,140 623
Non-pledged time deposits with [REZIEIR L =1 A
original maturity of less than ZIEEHERIER
three months 58,780 1,249 8,130 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEMEEE 255,399 276,565 9,270 623
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22,

23.

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
HK$198,844,000 (2014: HK$161,707,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22.

23.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

BHERBRESEEER %)
RBEHR - AEBMUARE(TARE])
FHER RS MIRTTATF 5198,844,0007 7T
(ZZ—PM4 : 161,707,000 7T ) - AREE
NMEEHARARMEN - AMBREFE
B B IINGE B TR MG LA e A5 T - S TE R A
[EEIRIRTE - AN B R B RN
BINEEBZBRTHARE L BRARME
‘qqg °

FRI|ITNE S ARITERNE Z2F
BEXRBAEL - AREZANBHEeFR
EE—HE=EANEHEHRFR LD
BIHZ 8 HATE HATF SRR R BRER IS, © SRTAE
BRI RN AR IR R R 8 2 iR
T

VB 13 BR R
R HIR 2 B R AR B R R A M E
BAMMT :

Group

rEH
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZT—OF
HK$'000 HKS000
THERT FAT
Within 90 days 90RA 97,785 89,207
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 623 1,469
181 to 365 days 1812365k 307 578
Over 365 days 365 KA = 6,375 4,858
105,090 96,112

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 45-day terms.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's banking facilities were supported
by the corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a
subsidiary of the Company to the extent of HK$339,521,000 (2014:
HK$368,000,000), of which an aggregate amount of HK$171,746,000
was utilised (2014: HK$122,396,000), and an undertaking of the Group
not to charge one of the Group's buildings (note 14).

24.

ENERBRERA  EEH KB4
K o

RITHERAREE
R-ZE—HE=F=+—H £K&EEZ
WITEREEUARRIRE—HWBEA
RIEIHMRAREREZE  HLERA
339,521,000/ 7T ( ZZ — U4 : 368,000,000
BIr) - ER B BA 171,746,000 7T (=
T —PU4F © 122,396,00078 7T ) K2 SA N £ [
AAERAREEE R —@EEF(E14)
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25. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. Et8ERHEMENKIE
Group Company
rEH b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-RF _—T-0OF | =FBT-HFE _—FT-NOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FTExT FHT
Deferred income FEIEWA - 518 - -
Other payables At JEA FRIE 41,985 35,155 = -
Accruals fEFTE A 44,627 45,693 2 7
86,612 81,366 2 7
Other payables of the Group at 31 March 2015 included a subsidy AEER -_T-—RAF=A=+—HHHEM
of HK$3,552,000 (2014: HK$3,974,000) received from the People's EARELERPETIAETFEEAR
Government of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the IR AT FT Y0 EN 3,552,000 70 ( Z & — U £F -
construction cost of basic infrastructure to be incurred by the Group 3,974,000/ 7C) BIH B - {E R AN ERET
for the development of the Jiangxi Project. During the year, an FIEEMERZRBERAE - FR - B8
amount of HK$422,000 (2014: HK$639,000) was utilised and has been F3422,000/ 7T ( ZZ— 04 : 639,000/ 7T.)
offset against the construction cost. A LAREEAK A 8Y o
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. {TES®TIA

Group
*EE
2015

—g-5%
HK$’000
TR

SN R IRA )

Foreign currency forward
contracts

9,110

Company
NN
2015 2014
—ZE—FHF —FT—MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THEIT

2014
—FT-F
HKS'000
TET

- 7,523 -

The Group has entered into various foreign currency forward contracts
to manage its foreign currency risk. These foreign currency forward
contracts are designated upon initial recognition as fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging currency
derivatives, net, amounting to a loss of HK$2,578,000 (2014: Nil), were
charged to income statement during the year. The above transactions
including derivative financial instruments were conducted with
creditworthy financial institutions without recent history of default.

REETY T ZEINERIPAL - LIER
SNERBS o B INERIIA MY T HERR
WK ARATFEE - FRFFAMKZERD
SR INESTAE T AR P EEBFHEAE
$82,5780008 L(ZF — U4 : ) o kil
RSBETESRMTA - HEEBRLT
ST AN AT (AR AR 8 S BT
% °

J
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26.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The aggregate monthly notional amount of the outstanding contracts
as at 31 March 2015 is US$5 million (31 March 2014: Nil). The major
terms of the contracts are as follows:

(i)

(i)

The Group shall sell US$1T million or US$0.5 million for RMB at
the contracted rates ranging from US$1 for RMB6.30 to 6.38
or receive the gain where the spot rate on the fixing date is
below the contracted rate.

Where the spot rate on the fixing date is above the upper
contract rates ranging from USS$1 for RMB6.35 to 6.43, the
Group shall sell double the amount of US$ for RMB at the
contracted rate or pay for the loss.

Where the spot rate on the fixing date falls within the upper
contract rates and contracted rates, no settlement will be
required.

The contracts are settled on a monthly interval from
September 2014 to November 2016.

The contracts will be terminated when either the cumulative
positive gain reaches a specific amount at any fixing date set
out in the relevant agreements or the spot rate on the fixing
date is equal to or below the lower contract rates ranging
from USS$1 for RMB6.12 to 6.186 in the period specified in the
relevant agreements.

26.
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RZE-—AF=R=+—H  KEKEL

FARFEELEE55000000%T(—Z—M
F=ZA=+—8 &) AHETBEIW

™

0]

(if)

(iif)

W45 € B 2 BNERRE R & HIEE
" KEBBAAHERIETE
NFARBI0TEARB63T
tH 5 1,000,0002E 7T 5% 500,000 3 7T A
BERARE - siEURES -

i E B H3Z BNEARE R 2 s Y
BHERIETENFARKGS
TEARB643T - REBMERS
HERHEEERNRTERBIMA
R¥ - HXMEE -

i E B Bz BN EAE K B2 = Y
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+—AHE ANEFAETR
U o
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. STERITER
Group AEE
Effective
interest rate BERA= Maturity E8A 2015 2014
(%) (%) (Note) (Bf=E) —EB-RfE —TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Current BDER
Bankloans  SRTTEF  1.14%to 1.28% 1.14%Z1.28% Ondemand JEEX 237,621 339,620
(2014:1.01%to (ZE—mF :
1.6%) 101%Z%1.6%)
Company ARTF
Effective
interest rate BERA= Maturity Z|HA 2015 2014
(%) (%) (Note) (Ff —E-RfF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current BDER
Bankloans  SRTTEF  1.16%t0 1.27% 1.16%ZE1.27% Ondemand JEER 96,875 217,224
(2014:1.01% to (ZE—mF :
1.6%) 1.01%%1.6%)
Notes: Bzt -

As at 31 March 2015, HK$144,621,000 (2014: HK$122,396,000) of the bank borrowings
of HK$237,621,000 (2014: HK$339,620,000) were supported by corporate guarantees

executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the Company and an undertaking of
the Group not to charge one of the Group's buildings (note 14).

As at 31 March 2015, HK$146,475,000 (2014: HK$217,224,000) of the bank borrowings
of HK$237,621,000 (2014: HK$339,620,000) were denominated in USS.

Since the Group's and the Company's bank loans at 31 March 2015 contained
repayment on-demand clauses, they were included within current interest-bearing

bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable on demand.

R-ZZE—RAFE=ZA=+—H " 237,621000%t(=
T — P04 : 3396200008 7L ) 2 RITHEE » Hep
144,621,000 AT (=ZF —U4F : 122,396,000/ 7T ) BA
AR ERAND ) — R B A R ER A A AR A
SETERANEREP —BEF 2 AEE (M
14) o

RZZT—RF=ZF=+—H8 2376210008 T(=
T — P4 : 339620000/ 70) 2 IRITEE - Hb
146,475,000/ 70 ( = — U4 1 217,224,000% 70 ) BA
ETTEHE -

WoT-—RF=A=+—H  ARARERAAT
MRTEREAEEREEL G - Bt AN
BRI - LA ARERIEEZ BITHH -

’¢‘
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. s ERITENRGE)
(Continued)
Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts repayable BIBRRITER 2 EFE - NEERALQA
in respect of the Group's and the Company's bank loans are analysed as RITERENSESTAT
follows:
Group Company
rEE ARAF
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF _—T-0OF  =T-HF _—FT-NOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHTT
Analysed into: baxiv=
Within one year —FR 237,621 145,040 96,875 38,790
In the second year FF - 194,580 - 178,434
237,621 339,620 96,875 217,224
28. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 28. RIKESFTEIRIE

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its subsidiary in
Indonesia who achieve the requirement age of 55 years based on the
provisions of the Indonesian Labour Law.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the
life expectancy.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at
31 March 2015 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent actuary with a
licence from Indonesia Ministry of Finance, using the projected unit
credit method. These obligations are not funded by the Group.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

REBEBREESE TERT - RIEESISSHK
REFHRNENEMBEAREE - RHE

Ao
it ERAERRREN S SR DA
B o

AEEERTERANETREZ&NEE
& B B ENJE B B Ef 5 n] 8 S i5 E B RBiro
Pusat AktuariafR FITERIEERIE EREHE
ERZE-—RAF=-A=1+—HEFE - %5
EEWIERASEE R -

RBREHRARBZ T EBERRAOT ¢

Ah35 2 (%)
B HEEEE%)

Discount rate (%)
Expected rate of salary increases (%)

7.7 8.5
7.0 7.0
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28.

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the
end of reporting period is shown below:

28.
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BIKEFHEIRE®)
RBEHR EABBRZEERBEDN
FPRENR ¢

2015 —E-EfF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
HEEF REEF
E5EEE EEFE
b EFA i CRL) kTR i (Rd)
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FERT FET
Discount rate BLIR K 1 (855) 1 1,100
Future salary increase RIREFF L 1 1,093 1 (864)
2014 —E-NE

Increase
in rate

b= 7

Discount rate BHIR &
Future salary increase RSN

Increase/
(decrease) in
net defined
benefit
obligation

Increase/
(decrease) in
net defined
benefit
obligation

A

Decrease
in rate

HoE T

%

302 1

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement
in respect of the plan are as follows:

BIRSURE DT TR BB RN
SHEEARE  ARBBH U TFREMNE
E2HBZTTEMMEE -

Bkt BN AR B I as R R 2 FI S AR ER 1N

—E—HE

HK$’000

FERT
Current service cost A RIS 2,071 1,235
Past service cost BEIRISAA 8 -
Interest cost B 192 128
Net benefit expenses B F5E 2,271 1,363
Recognised in cost of sales A E R A FER 1,916 1,161
Recognised in administrative expenses T SRR 355 202

2,271 1,363

J
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28. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued) 28. ENREFTEIEE®)
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit EERMNETHREZZEHNAT

obligations are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—uE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET T
At 1 April REA—H 2,425 2,578
Current service cost R BRIGAAR 2,071 1,235
Past service cost BEBRIGAAR 8 -
Interest cost F B A 192 128
Actuarial losses/(gains) FEEEE () 277 (1,130)
Exchange differences e X Z5 (527) (386)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,446 2,425
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value FTRREMNEERAZEE 2 A EEE B
of plan assets are as follows: T
2015 —E—FE

Remeasurement (gains)/losses
Pension cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income

RSN ERERA Rfpemhie BN E(KE)/BR

Actuarial Actuarial

changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from arising from included Exchange
included changesin changesin in other differences

1 April in profit financial experience  comprehensive onaforeign 31 March

2014 Service cost Net interest orloss assumptions adjustments income plan 2015

R HBER fE FARM i
—2-pf tABEZ RIELY EEH dEkEY FATTER —2-1f
BA-H HRR NEFE gt k529 k529 It EXZE =B=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Defined benefit EEEIEH
obligations i 2,425 2,079 192 2,211 432 (155) 277 (527) 4,446
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28.

PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (Continued) 28. RUAREFTEIFEE®)
2014 —E—pE

Net interest

Defined benefit EEEEA]

obligations  EfF 2578 1235 128 1363 (1,001) (129 (1,130) (386) 2425
The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets are as FEIEEREC A TEZEEZHAMT
follows:

2015 2014

—B-HF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FTT

Equity instruments AT A N/A B H N/A 38 A

Debt instruments BT A N/A FiE F N/A 38 B

Property IES N/A 38 F N/A 7N A
Expected contributions to be made in the future years out of the RIREF 2 ERBANE ETEBREFIE R

defined benefit obligations are as follows: K

2015 2014

—B-HF —E-F

HK$'000 HKS'000

THET FAT

Within the next 12 months KKRINEAA - -

Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F - -

Between 5 and 10 years 5E810F 499 373

Over 10 years 105 A E 538,493 510,094

Total expected payments SELEI SR 538,992 510,467
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of TERRE R B AR RS B R T 45 B R

the reporting period is 26.76 years (2014: 27.01 years). B2676F (ZF—PUF : 27014) ©

J
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 29. EEBIIREME
Group REE

Withholding

taxes on

undistributed

Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries

FEMEATE

puiE: AR5 ik H
BIRIE BESR ZRMB #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT TAET THAT

At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H 510 9,706 3,734 13,950
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRELTE Wzm K
to the consolidated income Bk (T AR

statement during the year EIERLIE (FI3E10)
(Note 10) (330) - 843 513
Exchange realignment PE 1 AR - m - 1
At 31 March 2014 R-ZT—F
—A=+—H 180 9,817 4,577 14,574
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MFMNA—H 180 9,817 4577 14,574
Deferred tax charged to the FREGFEEWER
consolidated income R AEER A
statement during (FF5E10)
the year (Note 10) - - 2,341 2,341

Withholding tax on repatriation /R [ B /& A &1FE
on earnings from a subsidiary FMERTEFORL

in the PRC - - (1,500) (1,500)
Exchange realignment BE 5 5% - 10 - 10
At 31 March 2015 R-ZT—HF

—A=+—H 180 9,827 5418 15,425
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
Group (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates is 5% (2014:
5%). In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to
be distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have
made assessment based on the factors which included the dividend
policy and the level of capital and working capital required for the

Group's operations in the foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2015, there were no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities (2014: Nil) for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Company's subsidiaries expected to
be distributed, after considering the above mentioned factors, in the

foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2015, no tax loss was arising from Hong Kong as
the Group has utilised tax losses of HK$55,000 during the year. As
at 31 March 2014, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of HK$55,000 that were available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the company in which the tax losses arose.
The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China
and Indonesia of HK$107,623,000 (2014: HK$119,890,000) and
HK$33,959,000 (2014: HK$41,076,000), respectively, that will expire
in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of those losses as the
directors consider that it is uncertain whether sufficient taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. There are
no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends

by the Company to its shareholders.
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30.

31.

ISSUED CAPITAL

30.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

EBITRAE

Company
PN
2015 2014
—TmEF
HKS$'000
FHET

—E—A%F
HK$'000
FTHET

Authorised: SEERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,000%
BREECOIBITZ B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
499,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 499,680,000/%
BREECOIB T B 4,997 4,997

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully
paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage
of their profits after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital. Subject
to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory surplus reserve may be used to offset against accumulated
losses.

31.

(N

KM
AEERAFEERBEFEZRESER
HEHFERYBRRP G
REF| -

REBENREIEARGIRE-ZSZT=F
NAZEBEA(TEA]DFTUENTB AR
RRAEELTE Byt BT 2 AR FR
N TE B} 3R 1,000,000 B & A% T {E0.0178
TTIREBEARINES RO E 2 Z5E

REBEARTEAS - EHEEMOKER
AAKBRRRENETED R (ZETHEE
ARPEE)BREEIERARFHE  BEE
ZiE B AERET EE B M EARS0% °
EREBETBERPIAHEETRERRT - &
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31. RESERVES (Continued) 31. @B
Company ARATH
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
e
(8 AR B E BFaF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FAT FAT
At 1 April 2013 RIE—=%F
MA—H 472,586 43,088 157,102 672,776
Profit and total FREF &
comprehensive income 2 EWE%E
for the year 1 - - 1,172% 1172
Final 2013 dividend —T—=F
REARR B 12 - - (19,987) (19,987)
Interim 2014 dividend —ZT—mF
P EAR S 12 - - (19,987) (19,987)
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—F
1 April 2014 ZA=+—HRK
—T—NF
mA—H 472,586 43,088 118,300 633,974
Profit and total F R &
comprehensive P E BT
income for the year 11 - - 135,325* 135,325
Interim 2015 dividend —E—FF
H AR R 12 - - (29,980) (29,980)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ—h%F
—A=+—H 472,586 43,088 223,645 739,319
* The balance included interest income from a subsidiary of HK$2,795,000 * 48R B FEIT B 2 R F B A 2,795,000 7T

(2014: HKS4,382,000) and dividend income from a subsidiary of
HK$ 135,800,000 (2014: Nil).

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the
then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital reserve may
be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

T —[PO4F : 438200078 7T) KAk A —FE
B /88 7~ &) /9 A% B I A 135,800,00078 7T (=
T—F ) o

RRREARFBIEARRRIRIEEHETKE
MEBARERNGEaEEFE  BHAL
BT ZARBIRAEECEZR - RIEFHA=S
HERENE  BAREA DR TARAK
R EREEZFRMNRE BHEK - AD
BIWEREEE B RERTRIHEE -

J
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HAEE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not RIMERR - NREBWEEMERBEEZ
provided for at the end of the reporting period (2014 Nil). BARABBRCCT—NF &) o

As at 31 March 2015, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company RZE—RAF=A=+—H  ARAK
have given corporate guarantees to banks to the extent of AAal—fEREBARFREE THEB AR
HK$339,521,000 (2014: HK$368,000,000) for banking facilities granted BRZEBTEREEERNRITEERES
to certain subsidiaries of the Company, which were utilised to the 339,521,000/ 7T (ZZF — U 4F : 368,000,000
extent of HK$171,746,000 (2014: HK$122,396,000) at the end of the BIL)RAIER  RBEHAR - 2BHA
reporting period (Note 24). 171,746,000/ 7T ( —ZF — 04 : 122,396,000

BTL) 2 R AR (FifRE24) -

33. COMMITMENTS 33, &IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REERRERRZ EARRENT
reporting period:

2015 2014
ZE-AF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: SEFIEESEI
Construction of factories and purchases of IR ETER
machinery and equipment for (CIFmEE)Z
the investment project in RS I e B i es R
Jiangxi (the “Jiangxi Project”) 155 122
Renovation of factories for the investrment RIS EIRE
project in Indonesia (the “Indonesia Project”) (ENfeEEB ) ZM=E 1,488 2,120
Purchases of items of property, HBEME  BEK
plant and equipment HREIEE 2,916 101
Renovation of factories RERE 116 58
4,675 2,401
2015 2014
—E—h%E —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Authorised, but not contracted for: BREERTL
Investment in the Jiangxi Project KERTIREER 1,550 38,610
Investment in the Indonesia Project "ENREEEE 4,462 7,811
6,012 46,421
The Company did not have any other significant commitments at the RS HAR - 2N ) I 48 (o] H th 88 K
end of the reporting period (2014: Nil). B(ZZ—HF - &\®)o
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BAEALIRS
The directors are the key management personnel of the Group. EERAEEZEEERAS - BEH
Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 8 to the financial BRI SRR s

statements.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2015

Financial assets

& 5= (BRR ) #2 IR A BR 2 T Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 127

35, €WMIESE

BHEDH

—E—RF
CREE

)
TARHREHROBREELNT

RE
Available-for-
Loansand sale financial
receivables assets Total
BRE
ElsE AHEERE #Et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T#ET FHET
Accounts and bills receivables FEURBR R R = E 124,192 - 124,192
Financial assets included in PIATENFIE - ek
prepayments, deposits and H A FEUGREY
other receivables (note 16) SREE(MFe) 17,826 = 17,826
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE - 63,750 63,750
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEESEER 255,399 - 255,399
397,417 63,750 461,167
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Group
rEE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss - held amortised
for trading cost
BROTEE
B 5IERN R SR AR
cRBE— HIERHEY
BHEFEE A =R ®st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET TERT
Accounts payable FEfTRRR - 105,090 105,090
Financial liabilities included in accrued TIAFERT & fE R E M E
liabilities and other payables FERTRAE - 37,964 37,964
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRITA 9,110 - 9,110
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STESRITER - 237,621 237,621
9,110 380,675 389,785

J
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35.
(Continued)
2014

Financial assets

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

TEMIASE@E

—g-mE
SREE

Group

REE

Loans and

receivables

B R EWGRIA

HK$'000

FBT

Accounts and bills receivables FEUBR R R R 134,263
Financial assets included in prepayments, PIATERFRIE ~ 1S R E MR

deposits and other receivables (note 16) eREEHF6) 13,932

Cash and cash equivalents ReERkREEMEEE 276,565

424,760

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable JERTRARER
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

THARE
HEIRITER

ERAE

Group
REH

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost
TR SH A AT AR
HKS$'000
FAT

96,112

SINFERT BUE R EL MBS FRIRA

25,192
339,620

460,924
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
2015

Financial liabilities

35. LRI AESE®E)

—E—REF

EWAE

Company
¥ /N
Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss - held amortised
for trading cost
BRAFEE
B YIRY RS
TRBE- SR
BIEEE SHBE #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET FET
Due to subsidiaries JERTH B A A = 640,768 640,768
Financial liabilities included in HIAFERTBED
accrued liabilities (note 25) TREEE(MFE25) - 2 2
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRMT A 7,523 - 7,523
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT EIRITER - 96,875 96,875
7,523 737,645 745,168
2014 —E—-mE
Financial liabilities A= =R

Due to subsidiaries

Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities (note 25)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

B R

FHRIRITER

Company
b/
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BEEHR A
SIRRAY
THAE
HK$’000
TR

453,188

FIANERTRENSRA E(ME2S) 7

217,224

670,419

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company’s financial assets,
including amounts due from subsidiaries, a loan to a subsidiary and
cash and cash equivalents, are accounted for as loans and receivables.

RZE—RAFR_T—NMF=A=+—
B ARBlemEERREREMBEAR -
ERE—MHBARNAES MRS SEE
B 95 AERKERGRE -

J
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36.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other than those
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

Liabilities measured at fair value:
2015

Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTA

36.

THTANQIFESR

AEESBMTANQAFERAERERF
EEEREERINET

\|

BRAFEFIRNEETE
—E-5F

Group
£33

Fair value

measurement using
significant
observable inputs

(Level 2)
EHAEKXR
AIAEEAEB N
AFE R
(5524%)

HK$'000

FHET

9,110

Derivative financial instruments PTEemMT A

Company

NG

Fair value
measurement
using significant
observable inputs

(Level 2)
RAEX
AREBAERN
REEFE
(5524%)

HK$’000

FHET

7,523

As at 31 March 2015, the Group and the Company had no financial
instruments measured at fair value under Level 1 or Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities.

MRZEB-RAF=RA=+—H FEERK
RATEFMEHEERERBENLE
FAEREMIARTEE -

(EE-RAF=RA=T—HEZZ—@N
FZA=Z+—HLFE  eREENER
BENDNTFENESHEEME I RER 2R
ZHEEE  EECMEARELRER -



Annual Report 2015 —ZF—RFEFEHR

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

PR IR AR T ()

(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RE=A=+—8H)

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts and bills receivables, other receivables, available-for-
sale investments, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, other
payables, derivative financial instruments, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including foreign
currency forward contracts. The purpose of such contracts is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its
sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating interest rate
borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risk. The interest-
bearing bank borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents are stated
at amortised cost and not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate
interest income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's net profit (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

37.

& 2= (BFR ) $#2 3% 5 BR 2 B Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited 131

MR EREE B RERBUR

AEENEI2EMT ARG BRITERN
EREFREFEER - &vﬁﬂlﬁz
IZEMRBEAEBEEMTES - A
SHEESRUEREER - i EYGK
BoAHHERE BReLReSER
B BARR - HMENFTE  STESR
TARGRRITEREREAMEREE
REfE - EKE%@%E&?E

FEBOSITUMETARS - BEES
SNERK) - AT ZEAHMENZERAR
SEEBELNINER R L EBE R -

AEMSRTAZ FEREBIIHREFIEE
B SNERERR  RBESRRREER
%o BERERMIMBEEESREBRAR
Zﬁ L us e

BRI
AR FTAR 2 TG R & 8 2 6
AEBRFBFNEABNRITEERR -

$’§@Eﬁﬁ%§&§*%¥/¥ SEENEEH
ME@ERE - FFERITER RekReF
=R T;z?f%ﬁﬁﬁkzl&)\ﬁﬁ & EHE
fli o FRMARZ HP W R IRE BRE
EEETUER 05 -

TRERHAEEMEERFETE - A%
BaA (R REETE )ﬂﬂfz/\iﬂi—f
BEE BB -

J



132

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited & 35 (EiBR ) 12 IR B BR 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B Rk By et (48)
(31 March 2015)
(ZZ—RF=A=+—8H)

37.

—Z—FREFEFIHR Annual Report 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. H¥EKREEZBERBEE#®)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) FIRE P (E)
Group REE
Increase in
interest rate Decrease
(basis points) in net profit
R4 hn (B 2) FRDE D
HK$'000
T
2015 —E—hF 100 2,376
2014 —E—NF 100 3,396
Company VNN
Increase in
interest rate Decrease
(basis points) in net profit
FZ g0 (B E) FFRR D
HK$'000
FHAT
2015 —E—hF 100 969
2014 TN 100 2172

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise as a substantial portion of sales or purchases transactions are
conducted by the Group's subsidiaries operating units in United States
Dollars ("USS") and RMB. As the foreign currency risks arising from
the sales and purchases can be set off with each other given that the
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to USS, the Group believes its exposure
to exchange rate risk in relation to transactions denominated in US$
is minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining the
balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency. Considering
the appreciation of RMB, the Group has entered into foreign currency
forward contracts to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the
Group's operations. As the functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries
is RMB and the Group's financial statements are reported in Hong
Kong dollars, there will be a translation credit/(debit) to the exchange
fluctuation reserve as a result of RMB appreciation/(depreciation). The
majority of the Group's operating assets are located in Mainland China
and denominated in RMB.

SME LB

AEEARRSEERR - FRRBRIE
HEEMBARUET(ETD RARE
ETEEES - ANBTTEE TN - B
FEEZNERB AIA T EE L - ANEE
RS EL A S TTRTHE Z SN R BR 80 o
AEBEBEBEFIAERNEEETESR
ZFERE - EEREARETE - AEE
I TINEEMAH NEREAREEZE
ESNE R o AT EIFTE A RIAARKE
RNEEERAEE 2 HHMKRTIAET
28 MARRTHE (B SEEE
A/ (kR B)EX KB EFHOELBE -
REBARID L EEEDLNPBEIARE
WAARKEEHE °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
net profit (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

liabilities).

(i) Sensitivities analysis on monetary items

denominated in RMB:

37.

2015 —EB-A%F
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT ARBHE
If HKS weakens against RMB BT AREEE
2014 —E—-mEF
If HKS strengthens against RMB AT ARBHE
If HKS weakens against RMB AT ARBEE

(ii) Sensitivities analysis on foreign currency forward

contracts:

2015 —E-hEF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETTHAREAE
If US$ weaken against RMB WETHARBEZE

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., accounts and bills

receivables) and the projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other banking facilities. The directors have reviewed the Group's
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and determined

that the Group has no significant liquidity risk.
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MHRERERE 2 BEREEE)

SNERB ()
TRIIRARBERR B BRATLE
2 ABBE (AL MS BT MY
AEEAH 2 RS (R BB EER S
EATERS) -

(i) L)(%E Bt ER BRI B 1SR E
7

Increase/
(decrease)
in net profit
R M,
(TB&) (Ri2)
HK$'000
AT

Increase/
(decrease) in
exchange rate

ExtH

3% (690)
(3%) 690
5% (1,729
(5%) 1,729

(i)  SEEREAHIHBED KT

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange rate in net profit
3 #RIE M,
(&) (R2)

3% (33,257)

(3%) 9,123

nEE S E R
AEEEREEERDESRETAER
EeRERZER - ZATASEZEREHT
AR rEE(NRURR R EE) 2 25
B AREEFRZASRERA -

AEEFBER BRITERREMIRT
BREE  #RESHEREREEIEZ
BT - EECRIAEENSEES
REAIHHER  UBR/REELEER
HRBE S ER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES MBEEERE 2B ERBE®)

AND POLICIES (continued)

37. 37.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The loan agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses giving
the banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the bank
borrowings are classified as "on demand". Notwithstanding the above
clause, the directors do not believe that the loans will be called in its
entirety within 12 months, and they consider that the loans will be
repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group and the Company at the date of approval of
the financial statements; the Group's and the Company's compliance
with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact
that the Group and the Company have made all previously scheduled
repayments on time.

MENE & ()

B e e < RITEEEG RN E
REEER G - Bt - |RITEERE
RIREREE] BEAUNLGH  EF
WARRZEEFHR 1218 A AmERE
BEE MEERRZFERFERE
iR ProI 2 EARHIREE © paHETIE
R AREE R AR A RS #E 5
2N - AEBERARFETERR
o WEBLEBOFHARAKERAR
FIATE G RS IR HIE 2K o

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end REEKR - REBERBELARLEN
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted FEtEzeRAEIBMBERNAT
payments, was as follows:
Group AEE
2015
—E-RF
On demand
or within In the
one year second year Total
EER
N —FA E-FR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHExT FHET
Accounts payable FEFSERR 105,090 - 105,090
Financial liabilities included in accrued ~ FIAJESTBER
liabilities and other payables H e AT RUER)
TRBE 37,964 - 37,964
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERMTA 9,110 - 9,110
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 238,894 - 238,894
391,058 - 391,058
2014
—TpE
On demand
or within In the
one year second year
EZER
H—FR E-FR
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT
Accounts payable FETBR R 96,112 - 96,112
Financial liabilities included in accrued B AJEEH BER
liabilities and other payables HAh FET FRIBHY
TRBIE 25,192 - 25,192
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 149,118 199,422 348,540
270,422 199,422 469,844
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
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37. BRREEZEERBE®)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERE)
Company ¥ AY-7)
2015
—E-A%F
On demand
or within In the
one year second year Total
EER
R—FR E£-FR et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T#ExT FHET
Due to subsidiaries FERTPTE A F) 640,768 - 640,768
Financial liabilities included in accrued %I A JEET & EHY
liabilities (note 25) SR EE(MF25) 2 = 2
Derivative financial instruments PTHEERT A 7,523 - 7,523
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 97,086 - 97,086
745,379 - 745,379
2014
—ZT—F
On demand
or within In the
one year second year
JEE K
F—FNR EF_FRN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH&T FHT
Due to subsidiaries FEAT BT /B 2 B 453,188 - 453,188
Financial liabilities included in accrued Bl A FEZT B (&HY
liabilities (note 25) B EMTE25) 7 - 7
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 41,480 183,215 224,695
494,675 183,215 677,890

J
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
Itis the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total current
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group's policy is to keep
the current ratio above 1.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 26 June 2015.
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